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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEIST OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OFECONOMSC&HOVSINGSTABILny

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov

May 18, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with The New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence. (VC#155510-B001), Concord. NH, for the ongoing provision of a
Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program serving New Hampshire individuals and
households who are fleeing domestic violence, through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,
by increasing the price limitation by $262,728 from $746,892 to $1.009,620 and by extending the
completion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30. 2023, effective July 1, 2022 or upon Govemor
and Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, Item #43,
amended on June 10, 2020, Item #16. amended on March 3, 2021, Item #15, and most recently
amended on October 27, 2021, Item #19.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-96-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, PERT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svcs 42307718 $248,064 $0 $248,064

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs 42307750 $247,380 $0 $247,380

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs 42307753 $247,380 $0 $247,380

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief 42307753 $4,068 $0 $4,068

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Svcs TBD $0 $262,728 $262,728

Total $746,892 $262,728 $1,009,620

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Miseion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent
Housing Program, which provides utility and security deposits, and rent and utility assistance to
those fleeing domestic violence. Additionally, the program provides case management for up to
tvyo and one half (2.5) years to help participants obtain, and remain in, permanent housing. The
Department contracts with The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
who, in turn, works with the statewide network of domestic violence programs for service delivery.

The Department is seeking to extend the contract beyond the completion date and
available contract renewal options in response to a directive from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Notice of Funding Opportunity, to provide an
additional one (1) year of funding to the Contractor for this specific Continuum of Care grant
project.

Approximately sixteen (16) households and twenty-nine (29) individuals will be served
during State Fiscal Year 2023.

The need for this program is emphasized by the many financial obstacles faced by those
who are fleeing domestic violence, and by those who are domestic violence survivors, in securing
permanent housing and In establishing lives independent from their abuser. Using the federally
required Housing First model, the Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans
and facilitates each participant's relocation to sustained permanent housing. Additionally, the
Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream, victim-centered, supportive services to increase each
participant's self-determined sense of safety and control and their ability to live more
independently.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as Income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Reviewing data entered by the Contractor into a Homeless Management
Information System comparable database as required by federal regulations for
Victim Service Providers. This is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of domestic violence victim, shelter and housing programs.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families,
who are experiencing homele^ness due to domestic violence, in unsafe situations without
needed support. Additionally, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations,
which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and
supportive sen/Ice programs.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH00113D1T002103.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lofi Shibtnette ^
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #43), as amended on June 10, 2020, (Item #16), as amended on March 3, 2021,
(Item #15), and most recently on, October 27, 2021 (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,009,620

Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to all Services, by adding
.Subsection 1.13., to read:

1.13. The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or remotely,
as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the
Department, which may include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data.

Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., by adding Subparagraph 1.2.4.4., to read:

1.2.4.4. NH00113D1T002103 (State Fiscal Year 2023)

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., to read:

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. June 19, 2019 through June 30, 2023, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., Rapid Re-Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

SPY 2020 SPY 2021 SPY 2022 SPY 2023 Total Amount

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance $195,216 $194,532 $198,600 $209,880 $798,228

1.2.8.2. Case Management $39,046 $39,046 $39,046 $39,046 $156,184

1.2.8.3. Transportation $2,509 $2,509 $2,509 $2,509 $10,036

1.2.8.4. Administrative $11,293 $11,293 $11,293 $11,293 $45,172

1.2.8.5. Total Amount $248,064 $247,380 $251,448 $262,728 $1,009,620

1.2.8.6 Vendor Match $64,839 $64,668 $65,685 $68,505 $263,697

7. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #4, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. f—

[ iS
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.1 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A04 Page 1 of 3 Date
5/19/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/20/2022

Date

■^■DocuSigrwd by:

_A->»fArcain..A.n«»

Name: Karen E. Hebert
Title: Director, DEHS

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

5/19/2022

Date

^DocuSl0n«d by:

Ijma. M,. ScWWf
— EC2EFE023DFa413-

Name* "-y" schoiiett
Title. Executive Director

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A04 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OocuSigntd by:

5/20/2022 I
7«g734>«941«0„

Date Name: Robyn Cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A04 Page 3 of 3
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NHCAOASV

|CoC Funds • NH0011301T002103

Eihibit B-2 Amendment B4 Budget

SFy2023 • 7/1/22-6/30/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Acttvtty Name BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 2M.eao

Supportive Services • Case Management

Supportive Ser>4ces • Transportation

Administration

25H Required Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

Total WIO Match »3.728

Cihlbit B-2 Amendment *4 Budget

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Seiual Violence
SS-202CI-BHS-04-PERMA-28A04

Contractor Initials
[i

Page 1 o( 1
S/19/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccretar>' of Slate of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30. 1981. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofiice is concerned.

Business ID; 63838

Certificate Number: 0005755697

A'

I&.

o
to

-ti

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOI-,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New i lampshire.

this 11th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORTTY

I, Amy Vorenberg . hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.) am a duty elected Chairperson/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 28, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Lyn M. SchoIIett, Executive Director,
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

»  ■ *.' ' * - "'ii ''- ' "i '■
'^^ty auThorized on behalf of the^NH CoaliUon Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter Into contracts or

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modirications thereto, which may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has ri^ been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendrrient to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate df Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this cer^cate as evidence that the person{s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 20.2022
Slgnature^f Elected Officer (j
Name: Amy Vorenberg
Tide: Chairperson, Board of Directors

—-i- —

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DIVYYYY)

04/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*''^ Eleanor Spinazzola
(603)293.2791 (603)293-7188

ACCESS' ^'c9^o'^P''^^^ola@eslnsurance.net
INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. DBA; NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER a Liberty Mutual AgerKy Corporation

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 2022 REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TODC POLICY EFF POLICY exp
VWD fMMrt>0/YYYY> (MM/OO/YYYYl

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LMBILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES tea occurrtncel

MAC 5464236 21 05/15/2022 05/15/2023

MED EXP (Any one peraon)

PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

PRO
JECTPOLICY

iVMie uimii nrrv'wO ~

□ LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1.000.000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT
lEa 8«JdenO

100,000

BODILY INJURY (Per pereon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

MAC 5464236 21 05/15/2022 05/15/2023 BODILY INJURY (Per scdPeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccidcfti)

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

X
OCXUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

UMB8234007.14 05/15/2022 05/15/2023 1,000.000

X RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe un^
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

XPER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

WC5-31S-604577-012 05/15/2022 05/15/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

e.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS (VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Remerfcs Schedule, may be ettached if more spKels required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH OHMS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NHCADSV Vision and Mission

Vision

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and
just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected
by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to
provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent
community-based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working
together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their

responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence ■ PO Box 353 ■ Concord. NH 03302 • 603.224.8893
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS

June 30,202!
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX # (603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS . COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,

.  as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2021 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
I

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2020
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated February 23, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and.for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 22,
2021, on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021

-2-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2021 and June 30,2020

See Independent Auditors'Report

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit, Short-Term

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

2021

184,123

133,856

226,062

2,088,047

23,904

2,655,992

2020

48,920

89,537

145,968

1,968,260

22,979

2,275,664

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment, Net

14,654

61,072

75,726

(24,170)

51,556

14,654

37,719

52,373

(15,887)

36,486

OTHER ASSETS

Long-term Investments

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Temi

Security Deposit

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

454,367

68,057

6,213

528,637

3,236,185

1,692,068

72,402

347,689

207,016

6,213

560,918

2.873,068

1,764,470

1,520,941

79,223

1,600,164

OTHER LIABILITIES

SBA Paycheck Protection Program Loan 175,000

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

1,337,859

133,856

1,471,715

3,236,185

1 ,008,367

89,537

1 ,097,904

2,873,068

Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 6B9E0F24-140A-4E3C-8AC2-0560028509ED

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30,2021, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2021 2020

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Grant Revenue $  10,134,624 $  125,000 $  10,259,624 S 9,457,727

Contributions 147,285 - 147,285 281,953

Donated Services 1,496 - 1,496 66,758

Interest Income 6,910 - 6,910 6,156

Miscellaneous Income 21,640 - 21,640 45,055

Total Contributions and Support 10,31 1,955 125,000 10,436,955 9,857,649

Investment Dividends 10,397 10,397 7,763

Unrealized and Realized Gain on Investments 78,134 - 78,134 10,603

Investment Fees (1,91 1) - (1,91 1) (1,272)

Net Investment Gains and Earnings 86,620 - 86,620 17,094

Total Support and Revenue 10,398,575 125.000 10,523,575 9,874,743

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 80,681 (80,681) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 10,037,272 ,  - 10,037,272 9,650,552

Management and General 93,744 - 93,744 1 14,833

Fundraising 18,748 - 18,748 20,982

Total Expenses • 10,149,764 - 10,149,764 9,786,367

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 329,492 44,319 373,81 1 88,376

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,008,367 89,537 1,097,904 1,009,528

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  1,337,859 $  133,856 $  1,471,715 $  1,097,904

Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B9EOF24-140A-4E3C-8AC2-0560028509ED

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2021

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Serx'ices & General Fundraising 2021 2020

Salaries $  1,116,694 $  59,399 $ 11,880 $  1,187,973 $  1,147,959

Payroll taxes 89,37! 4,754 951 95,076 93,379

Health and Dental Insurance 120,054 6,386 1,277 127,717 102,596

Other Employee Benefits 33,627 1,789 358 35.774 40,773

Professional Services 100,557 5,349 1,070 106,976 141.765

Contract/Grant Services 7,616,005 - - 7,616,005 6,906,436

Survivor Grants 127,032 - - 127,032 562,698

Rental Assistance 182,398 - - 182,398 150,967

Memberships 5,635 300 60 5,995 5,540

Publications 1,671 89 18 1,778 1,422

Advertising/Public Awareness 2,956 157 31 3,144 5,995

Copying 3,419 182 36 3,637 3,960

Office Supplies 46,662 2,482 496 49,640 38,804

Postage 3,362 179 36 3,577 4,643

Printing 3,619 193 39 3,851 2,074

Equipment & Moving 1,013 54 II 1,078 1,185

Maintenance & Repair 40,901 2,176 435 43,5)2 50,658

Rent Expense 83,230 4,427 885 88,542 85.400

Parking 7,332 390 78 7,800 8,370

Insurance 9,020 480 96 9,596 6,530

Staff Development 12,894 686 137 13,717 14,083

Travel 1,412 75 15 1,502 44.792

Telephone 51,167 2,722 544 54,433 37,458

Technology 159,137 - - 159,137 88,147

Miscellaneous Expense 4,053 214 43 4,310 -

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense - - • -
39,117

AVAP Member Training/Education 604 - -
604 2,102

Direct Training 46,029 - • 46,029 44,919

Community Education 143,718 - - 143,718 136,462

Depreciation Expense 7,785 414 83 8,282 6,393

Accounting Fees 15,915 847 169 16,931 13,151

Federal Taxes Expense (Benefit) - - - - (1,411)

Total Expenses S  10,037,272 S  93,744 S 18,748 $  10,149,764 S  9,786,367

Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B9EOF24.140A-4E3C-8AC2-0560028509ED

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Net Gain on Investments

SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan Forgiveness

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Federal Taxes Payable

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property and Equipment
Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit
Proceeds on Sales of Investments

Purchases of Investments

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

$ 373,811

8,282

(86,620)

(175,000)

(1 19,787)

(925)

171,127

(6,820)

164,068

(23,353)

58,865

(20,058)

15,454

1,376

6,393

(17,094)

(86,615)

(3,063)

(66,552)

(24,441)

(1,428)

(104,424)

(10,000)

(43,122)

82,264

(412,859)

(383,717)

175,000

175,000

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 179,522 (313,141)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

138,457

S 317,979

451,598

$  138,457

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services 1,496 $  66,758

Notes to Financial Statements
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new nampsnire coaiinon Againsr uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition Is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for Its 12-member agency crisis centers that
in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a unlversliy-based program. The Coalition receives
96% of its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;

•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide law>'ers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
draft legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative
session. The Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative
session. These bills address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family
law; divorce and child custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy
and personal lnformation;"healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic

violence, prevention and services available to victims.
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i^ew nampsnire coaiiiion Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the
causes and effects of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a program of the Coalition that
ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking throughout
New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to
Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national
service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are
trained in the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they
use in one-on-one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic
budgeting to checking a credit report. AVAP members also provide information and facilitate referrals to
local financial and housing services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic e.xaminations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the state to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.
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i^ew nampsnire coamion Against uomestic and Sexual Violence

Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued!

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local
DCYF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or
permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reftect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $1,496 and $83,144, respectively.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020 in the amounts of $58,904 and $70,244, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their
relationship to those activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy
costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are
based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the
e.xpenditure and the activities benefited.

Property and Eauinmcnt

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions
without donor restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with e.xplicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net
assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $8,282
and $6,393, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax
positions of the Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of
whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity .of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash
equivalents reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts
within the statement of cash flows as of June 30:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents $184,123 $ 48,920
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 133.856 89.537

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates
bear interest ranging from 1.50% to 3.50% as of June 30, 2021. Maturities range from six months to four
years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title I, New Hampshire, The State and Us Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $ 16,022 and $3,450 at June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2021 and 2020
the Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $92,848 and $85,316, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30, 2021 and 2020 vvas $3,144 and $5,995 respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by
net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are slated at carrying cost at June 30, 2021 and 2020, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which are stated at fair value.

Reclasslfications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 22, 2021, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In the year ended June 30, 2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)—Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The PASS issued this ASU to
clarify and improve the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions
made. The amendments in this ASU should assist entities in (I) evaluating whether transactions should be
accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit
Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a
contribution is conditional. Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in
the way the Coalition recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited
financial statements (presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were
required on a retrospective basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

In the year ended June 30, 2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue Recognition (Topic 606)—Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. This ASU introduces a new five-step revenue recognition model in which an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity e.xpects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Coalition
recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements
(presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were required on a
retrospective basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a lessee
will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months.
Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance of operating lease.
However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of
financial position. This standard Is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2021.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively,
the net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2021 2020

Housing Assistance to Survivors $ $ 24,615

Operations Support 20,000 -

Coalition Services 20,000 -

Direct Support to Survivors - 19,200

Technology Improvement 29,751 5,117

Human Trafficking Services 40,574 20,574

Economic Support to Survivors 23.531 20.031

Total $  133.856 $  89.537

Net assets in the amount of $80,681 and $674,468 were released from donor restrictions by incurring
expenses satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE C - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent was $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term. Annual parking was $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2022 $ 99,61 1

2023 103,01 1

2024 106,546

2025 110,223

.2026 1 14,635

Thereafter 99,138

Total $633.164

Rent expense related to the lease was $88,542 and $85,400 for the years ended June 30, 202! and 2020
respectively. Rent paid for parking spaces totaled $7,800 during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, and are included in parking expense on the statement of functional expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
totaled $23,089 and $25,850, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

2021 Fair Value (Level 11

$ 454,367
294.1 19

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

Fair Value

$  454,367

294.119

2020

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

S 748.486

$ 347.689

352.984

S 700.673

$ 347,689
352.984

S 700.673

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions.

NOTE F - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the
following as of June 30:

Fund for Grace

Operating Reser\'e

2021

56,918

148.665

2020

62,762

148.665

NOTE G - LIOUIDITV & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support
is held for the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial
assets that could be readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 317,979 $  138,457

Certificates of deposit, short-term 226,062 145,968

Grants Receivable, net of
Grants Payable 395,979 447,319

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction (133.8561 (89.5371

$ 806.164 $ 642 207
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value, investments at June 30, 2021 and
. 2020 are composed of the following:

2021 2020

Cost Market Cost Market

Equity Mutual Funds iE  84,225 $  112,698 $  70,241 $  72,830

Mutual Funds 135,363 134,725 121,377 123,897

Money Market 22,559 22,559 24,488 24,488

Exchange traded funds 125,635 184,385 121,479 126,474

Total ;E  367,782 $ 454,367 $  337,585 $  347,689

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 Value Measurements defines fair value,
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurements based on the obser\'able inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It
prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either directly
or indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments are measured at Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market
prices" per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at
cost. Donated investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt.
Gains and losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions, unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policv

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total
portfolio of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund
market value as of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the
approval of a majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose,
may the Coalition exceed the 5% spending cap.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS, (continued!

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets
of the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the
Finance Committee of the Coalition are to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition's investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that
may have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.

NOTE 1 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20, 2022 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 3.75% and 4.75% as of June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE J - SBA PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 23, 2020 the Coalition received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business Administration
as part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of $175,000. This loan called for interest fixed at
1%. No payments were required for six months from the date of the loan. This note was to mature two
years from the date of first disbursement of the loan.

The loan was be forgiven in full under the provisions of Section 1 106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 1 16-136) on February 26, 2021. The revenue is included in
grant revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - COVlD-19

As a result of the spread of the COVlD-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
t>'pes of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs are identified in the summar>' of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Umform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessar>' in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
efTeciiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
September 22, 2021
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Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30. 2021

Federal CFDA/ Pass-Through

Assistance Entity Passed

Listing Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Denartment of Housins and Urban DcveloDment:

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HI IS:
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 102-500731 $  207,105 S  218,398

U.S. Denartment of Ju.stice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 - 257,014

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
VAWA, SASP 16.017 2020SASP01 364,216 364,216

OVC Human Trafficking 16.320 - 77,476

VOCA. Technology Improvement 16.575 - 67,234

VOCA, Data Projects Coordinator 16.575 - 20,314

VOCA, SA 16.575 2018VOC49 6,163 175.099

VOCA, CA 16.575 20I8VOC47 - 14,775

VOCA, DV 16.575 2018VOC48 59,283 61,769

VOCA, Competitive 16.575 2021VOC72 118,891 131,891

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 2021VOC31 2,912,419 3,362,762

VOCA, Amendment 16.575 202IVOC76 62,500 62,500

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2020VAWI6 - 151.526

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,523,472 4,489,562

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,523,472 4,746,576

I IS Denartment of the Trcasur\':

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

Covid-19: AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program Cares Act 21.019 -
35,874

U.S. DcDartment of Health and Human Services:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Scr\'ices Act 93.591 - 267,818

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Ser\'ices Act - Covid-19 93.591 • 72,564

Subtotal - 340.382

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 201,036 281,155

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 155510 BOOl 1,204,343 1,228,093

Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-19 93.671 155510 BOOl 1 18,879 118.879

Subtotal 1,323,222 1.346.972

Total Pass-Through Programs 1,524,258 1,628,127

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,524,258 1,968,509

Comoraiion for National & Community Services:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!
AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 229,003

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 5,254,835 $ 7,198.360

-22-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B9E0F24-140A-4E3C-8AC2-0560028509eD . .
new nampsnire L.oaiiiion Against uomestic and bcxual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing #

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671

Amount Provided

$  207,105

364,216

3,159,256

201,036

1.323.222

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Tina Smith
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative Director, 2006 - Present

•  Continued ail duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSV.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 - 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988 - 1993

Law Offices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary
•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mekeel, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Software
Spreadsheets
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
E.xcellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law

EDUCATION
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NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH
Selected Accounting and Management Courses

Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNm' ACTIVITIES

2002-Present Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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Rachel Duffy

Work Experience

Housing and Economic Justice Specialist
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
August 2021 to Present
Oversee the HUD Domestic Violence Rapid Re-Housing grant through the Balance of State Continuum of
Care. Facilitate training and support to the 8 subrecipient agencies. Offer technical assistance to programs to
ensure they are HUD compliant. Offer monthly meetings for housing advocates across the state to increase
collaboration throughout the programs. Assist in completing annual grant application. Track grant
expenditures and complete monthly billing for the program. Manage the statewide VOCA funded Housing
First Program, including technical assistance and training to 12 member programs, process funding
requests, reporting on program outcomes, Develop and maintain statewide relationships to support housing
advocacy. Administer the Economic Empowerment Program of NH, including managing the Matched
Savings Program and training AmeriCorps Members and other advocates on financial empowerment
resources

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Manager
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADS\^
August 2020 to August 2021
Effectively Managed NHCADSV AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) by adhering to
mandated programmatic regulations including performing background checks on incoming AVAP
members, maintain member files, biannual grant progress reports, and ensuring members adhere to
service polices. Offered menlorship, training, and guidance to AVAP members throughout the service
year. Supported host sites in supervising their AVAP members through training and ongoing
communication across the service year. Participated in AmeriCorps days of service events such as MLK.
day of service. Trained AVAP members in implementing the Allstate Moving Ahead curriculum for
survivors of domestic and sexual violence at their host sites. Offered educational and employment
guidance for AVAP members exiting the program.

Transitional Housing Advocate
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
February 2017 to August 2020
Manage the cases of up to 10 families. Assist clients in searching for apartments. Negotiate fair rents with
landlords. Keep informed on housing laws and legislation. Cultivate strong community relationships to
enhance client supports. Provide financial literacy to clients tlirough ongoing budget and savings, and
credit awareness seminars. Maintain confidential infonnation. Track statistical data and complete grant
reports on a semiannual basis. Work with clear judgment in crisis situations and provide emotional
counseling. Directly supervised the Housing First Advocate.

Shelter Manager
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
January 2013 to February 2017
Managed the cases of up to five families in a confidential domestic violence shelter. Provided direct
ser\'ice and crisis counseling to all families. Maintained condition of shelter by keeping track of regular
maintenance and coordinating repairs. Lead weekly support groups at shelter. Participated biweekly on
the 24-hour crisis line. Maintained confidential documents. Tracked statistical data for quarterly reports.

AmeriCorps Member (court advocate)
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Americorps Victim Assistance Program - Concord, NH
August 2012 to Januarj' 2013
Assisted survivors of domestic violence in preparing legal documents such as restraining orders, and ex
parte custody orders. Advocated for clients during court proceedings. Assisted clients in applying for
legal assistance. Participated on biweekly on our 24-hour support line. Become familiar with All State
Financial Empowerment Curriculum and provide this training to clients. Attended AmeriCorps training's
and social outreach events.

Education

Associates Degree in Behavioral Science-2019
Granite State College - Concord, NH
Certificate in Human Ser\'ices-2014

Nashua Community College - Nashua, NH
UNH Supervisors Boot camp -University of New Hampshire Durham, NH (Completed 7/19/18)
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NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence

Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Contract
State Fiscal Year 2023

Name Job Title

Annual

Salary

% Paid

from this

contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Pamela English Administrative & Financial Director 84,500 0% -

Rachel Duffy Housing and Economic Justice Manager 52,900 17% 8,900
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISiON OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 033OI

603-27I-9474 1-80045^^34S Ett 9474

F»i: 603-371-4230 TDD Accm: 1 •800-735-3964 www.dhhf.oh.gov

September 21. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councii

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract vnth The New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, (VC#155510-B001). Concord. NH. for the ongoing provision of a
Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program serving New Hampshire individuals and
households who are fleeing domestic violence, through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,
by increasing the price limitation by $4,068 from $742,824 to $746,892 with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30. 2022, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019. item #43.
amended on June 10. 2020, item #16. and most recently amended on March 3. 2021. item #15.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Svcs TED $248,064 SO $248,064

2021. 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Svcs TBD $247,380 $0 $247,380

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Svcs TBD $247,380 $0 $247,380

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and
Relief TBD $0 $4,068 $4,068

Total $742,824 $4,068 $746,892

The D<pbrJni«nl o/WfollA and Human Strvictt' Miuien t« to join wmmu/iities and familin
in providing opporiuniiiet for citizen* to achieve health ond irtdep<nde/ic«.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Coundl

Pa^e 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

Annually, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) releases a
Continuum of Care Program competition: As part of this competition, the Department (as the
Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum of Care) is required to Issue a Request
for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues strict guidelines that specify the eligible
activities, populations to be served, expected performance outcomes, and time fr^es for the
competHion. All project applications, new and renewal, are scored based on a Rank and Review
Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD Notice of Funding Availability. Project
applications are ranked in order of score from highest to lowest, and are funded based on this
ranking process. All project applications and individual project scores are reviewed by HUD who
informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal projects. Funding for new
projects is determined by the amount of bonus funding, if any. is made available by HUD.

The purpose of this request is to add funding for the ongoing provision of a Rapid Re-
Housing, Permanent Housing Program which provides utility and security deposits, and rent and
utility assistance to those fleeing domestic violence. Additionally, the program provides case
management for up to two (2) years to help participants obtain, and remain in, permanent housing.
The Department contracts with The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
.Violence who, in turn, works with the statewide network of domestic violence programs for service
delivery. This request adds additional funds awarded by HUD during the Federal Fiscal Year 2020.
Notice of Federal Award competition.

Approximately sixteen (16) households and twenty-nine (29) Individuals will be served
from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2022.

The need for this program is emphasized by the many financial obstacles faced by those
who are fleeing domestic violence, and by those who are domestic violence survivors, in securing
permanent housing and in establishing lives independent from their abuser. The Contractor will
facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while providing
connections, with community and mainstream, victim-centered, supportive services to increase
each participant's self-determined sense of safety and control and their ability to live more
independeritly.

The Department will monitor contracted senrices using the following tools:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Sem'Kdnnual statistical reports, including various demographic Information and
Income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  The Contractor will report program information through the timely and accurate
entry of data Into a Homeless Management Information System comparable
database as required by federal regulations for Victim Service Providers. This will
be the primary re^rting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the .onglhai contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, cohtlrigent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is not exercising
its option to renew at this time.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness due to domestic violence may be left in unsafe or potentially
deadly situations wtthcut options for safe, sustainable housing or supportive services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numtier #14.267 FAIN # NH0113D1T002002

In the event thai the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

-  Respectfully submitted,

Loi^. Shibinette^
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Rapid Re-Housing Program contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019. (Item #43), as amended on June 10, 2020. (Item #16), and most recently amended on
March 3, 2021, (Item #15) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. amendment and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions to Standard Coritract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement'of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth-herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$746,892

2. Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Rapid Re-Housing Program
Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4.. to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0113D1TOO1BOO (State Fiscal Year 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0113DR1T001901 (State Fiscal Year 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0113D1T002002 (State Fiscal Year 2022)

3. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2, by
replacing Paragraph 1.2.7, and Subparagraphs 1.2.7.1. through 1.2.7.3., with the following:

1.2.7. -.Reserved,..

4. Exhibit B. Methods^'anidjConditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Rapid Re-HousIng Program
Funding. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

SFY 2020 SFY 2021 SFY 2022 Total Amount

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $195,216 $194,532 $198,600 $588,348
1.2.8.2. Case Management: $39,046 $39,046 $39,046 $117,138
1.2.8.3. Transportation; $2,509 $2,509 $2,509 $7,527
1.2.8.4. Administrative Exoenses: $11.293 Si 1.293 $11.293 $33,879
1.2.8.5. Total Program Amount: $248,064 $247,380 $251,448 $746,892

'1.2.8.6 Vendor Match; ■ $64,839 $64,668 $65,685 $195,192-

5. Add Exhibit B-l, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A03 NH Coalition Against Domeslic and Sexual Violence Contractor Initials
^  9/17/2021

A-S-1.0 Page lot 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval!'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

•9/29/2021 •

•OMuSIOMtf by;

Dale Namei Chr'f^^^7rii"^ntaniello
Title. Associate commissioner

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

OoeuSlBfwd by;

9/17/2021 Ai. StUWf
D^Ii ^ Name:

Title. Executive Director

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A03 NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment,.having, been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

C—0oewSl9n*4by-.
j, [knidfLur

5^te Name: Marshall
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A03 NH Coallllon Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

A-S-l.O Page 3 of 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSKIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiOS OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABJUTY

119 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271.9474 l4004tS2.334S CiL 9474

Fei: 6a3.27M230 TDD A«e«i: l*»-735.2964 w*w.dbhj.nh.|o*

February 3. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
aruj the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with The New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. {VC#155510-B001). Concord. NH for the ongoing
provision of a Rapid Re-HousIng, Permanent Housing Program serving New Hampshire
individuals and households who are fleeing domestic violence, through the Federal Continuum of
Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by inaeasing the price limitation by
$247,380 frorn $495,444 to $742,824 and by extending the completion date from June 30. 2021
to June 30, 2022 effective July 1, 2021. or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Councii on June 19, 2019. item #43
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 10. 2020, Item #16.

Funds are available in the follovflng account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTtce,
if needed and justifted.

05-95^2-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Ffeca!

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Numbor

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42307718 $248,064 $0 $248,064

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42307750 $247,380 $0 $247,380

2022 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $0 $247,380 $247,360

Subtotal $495,444 $247,380 $742,824

77>« Dtporlnicnl o/Htotth and Human Strvieti'Miuion it to}oln (ammunilUi and /amilitf
in providing opportunitiet for tilixtnt W ocbi*ut htolth and indeptndtna.
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Hts Excatlency. Governor Christopher T. Sunimu
end the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sol© source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is for the ongoing provision of a Rapid Re-HousIng, Permanent
Housing Program which provides utility and security deposits, and rent and utility assistance to
those fleeing domestic violence. Additionally, the program provides case management for up to
two. (2) years to help pafticipants obtain, and remain in, permanent housing. The Department
contracts with The New Hampshire Coaliiion Against Dornestic and Sexual Violenc© who, in turn,
wortis with the statewide networli of domestic violence programs for service delivery.

The need for this program is emphasized by the many financial obstacles that domestic
violenc© survivors face in securlrig permanent housing and in establishing lives independent from
their abuser. Approximately sixteen (16) households and twenty-nine (29) individuals will be
served from July 1, 2021 to June 30. 2022.

The Vendor will facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent housing
while providing connections with community and mainstream, victim-centered, supportive
services to increase each partidpant's self-determined sense of safety arid control and their ability
to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, induding various demographic information and.
Income and expense repoils, to indude match dollars.

•  The Vendor wlll report program information through the timely and accurate entry
of data Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System. This
will t)e the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renevral. of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contir^ent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fusing,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Departmenl is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness due to domestic violence may be left in unsafe or deadly
situations without options for safe, sustainable housing or supportive services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #TBD

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re*Houslng Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hurnan Services

Amendment #2 to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

This 2n(J Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") is by and between (he State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a
place of business at One Eagle ̂ uare. Suite 300, Concord, NH, 03301.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
June 19, 2019, (Item #43). as amended on June 10. 2020. (Item #16). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract rriay be amended and extended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from'the Governor and Executive Council; and-

WHER^S, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained In
the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37; General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$742,824.

3. - Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Paymeni. Section 1. Rapid Re-Housing Program
Funding. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0113D1T001800 (State Fiscal Year 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0113L1T001901 (Stale Fiscal Year 202l)

1.2.4.3. TEfD (State Fiscal Year 2022)

4. Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Rapid Re-Housing Program'
Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7.. to read:

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. Date of Original Contract G&C approval through June 30, 2020; not to exceed $248,064.

1.2.7.2. Date of Amendment #1 G&C approval through June 30. 2021; not to exceed $247,380.

1.2.7.3. Date of Amendment #2 G&C approval through June 30, 2022; not to exceed $247,380.

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Rapid Re-Housing Program
Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1 2 8 Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
'  IMS

New Hampshire Coalition Against Amendment U2 Contractor Iniiialsl
Domestic and Sexual Violence 2/3/2021
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA.2e-A02 Page 1 of 4 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

SPY 2020 SPY 2021 SPY 2022

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $195,216 $194,532 $194,532
1.2.8.2. Case Management; $39,046 $39,046 $39,046
1.2.8.3. Transportation: $2,509 $2,509 $2,509
1.2.8.4. Administrative Expenses: $11.293 $1^293 ?1^293
1.2.8.5. Total Program Amount: $248,064 $247,380 $247,300
1.2.8.6 Vendor Match: $64,839 $64,668 $64,668

■>ittals[New HampshUe Coalilion Againsi Amendmenl 92 Controclor lnit»als|
OomesUc and Sexual Violence 2/3/2021
SS-2020-BMS-04.PERMA-28-A02 Page 2 ol 4 Dale ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re«Housing Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment ff2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall t>e effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/8/2021

Date

2/3/2021

Date

kr:

■uajujiwtcrokH-
Name; chrisiine santan.iello
Title: Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

—C)9cw1Iqki<»t:

H.
BCKrcwwfctiiia- —- ' ■ ' '

Name: tyn m. schollett
Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Coelilion Against
Oomeslic ar>d Sexual Vioience

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-28-A02

Amendment ff 2

Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hume
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by th
execution.

OFFICE OF

2/12/2021

'  DiCKaamaci

Date Name:cath

Title: Atto

hereby certify that the fore90ir>9 Amendment was approved by (he Governor and Executive Council of

n Services

s office, is approved as to form, substance, and

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

nne Pinos

rney

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:

OFFICE OF

Date Name:

Title:

New Hompshlre Coalition Against
Oomeslic end Sexual Violence

SS-2020-BHS04-PERMA.2a-A02

Amendment 02

Page 4ot 4

(date of meeting)

THE SECRETARY OF STATE
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STATE OF

DEPARTMENT OF HE

OmStONOFECOi^C

Uri A SlilfaiMiir

CoflwnUxiQntr

' ChrbtliH U SMiaitldM
Olrtfiar

129 PLEASANT ST
603-271-9474.

Pax; <03-27 > .4230 TOO Ac

His Excollcncy. Govefoor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

MfiV26'20 Annas MS

s'CW HAMPSHIRE

Ilth and human services
MICA HOUSING STABILITY

-lie /

tEET.CONCOftO.iNH 03301
I-000-S52-334S Em. 9474

cst: >-IOO-73S*2964- M-ww.dhhi.oh.sov

May 1.2020

Authorize the Department of Health, and Human Services. Division-of Economic and
Hou^ng"Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with The New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Vioience. (VC#155;-10-B001). Concord.' NH for the ongoing
provision of a Rapid Re-Housing. Permanent.Hd"*'—
individuals and households who are fleeing
Continuum ot Cdre Program, by increasing the price limitation by $247,380 frorn $248,064 to
$495,444 and by extending the completion date from June 30. 2020 to Jun€.30. 2021 effective
July '1. '2020 Of upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.
was approved by Governor and Council on June 19.

The original cbntract
2019. Item UA2. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account
the authority to adjust .budget line Hems within the t
stale fiscal years through the Budget Office, if neede 1 and justified..

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HU.MAN
SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HC USING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

or Stale Fiscal Years 2020 atxl 2021. with
fice limitation and.encumbrances between

State

.Fiscal
Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
: Contracts fpr

Prog Svc
T8D $248,064 $0 $248,064

.?021 102-500731
Conlracfs for

•  Prog Svc
TBO $0 $247,380 $247,380

Total $248,064 . $247,380 $49.5,444

EXP.LANAT ON- ■ ■ ■

This request is Sole Source because, annua i
DeveloRment.(HUD)overseesaConlinuumof Care
part of this process, the Department IS required to p
HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on
Department Iq provide grant av^rds ar^d the specifir
the origir3al contracl was approved by Governor and

< y. the US Department of Housing and Urban
I 'rogram competitive 'application process. As
rovlde HUD wlth'each potential vendor and
[hat evaluation process. HUD directs the
amounts to vendors. As previously slated.
Council on June 19.2019, Item ff43.
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislcpher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council
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The. purpose of this request is for the ongoing provision of a Rapid Re-Housing. Permanent
Housing Program v^ich provides utility and security deposits, rent and utilities, to those fleeing
domestic violence. Additionally, the program provide:; case management for up to two (2) years
to help participants obtain, and remain In. permanent XMslng.-

The need for this program Is emphasized
Hempshire, longer than rrarmal shelter slays and r
finendai obsledes survivors face in securing permanc
lives. Approximately sixteen (16) households and twe
July \. 2020 to June 30, 2021.

the tack of affordable housing In New
^turns to abusive'partners, as well es the
nl housing end In establishing indopendent
ity-nine (29) Individuals will be served frorh

t AtThe Vendor will facilitate participant's movem
providing connections with communliy end mslnstrei
Increase participant's self-determined sense of safety
Independently.

The Oepartment will monitor contracted servicss by utilizing the following methods:'
•  Annual compliance reviews shall be pt rformed that include the collection of data

relating to compliance with administraih e rules and contractual egreemants.
■ • Stalislical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded

vendors, including various demograpftic-infonVtali.on, as well as income and
expense reports indudrng match dollart

•  The Vendor is r^uired to maintain tifnety.end accurate data entry In the New
Hempshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data coPeciion.

into sustained permanent housing white
m. victim'-cenlered, supportive services to
and control and their ability to live more

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Reviscns to

Renewal, of the original contract, the parties havd th
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfaclo
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) ye^

Standard Contract Language. Se'ction 2..
IS opiioh to extend the agreement for up to
ry delivery of services, available funding,
approval; The Department is exercising its
rs evaiiable.

.  Should the Governor and Council not author

who are experiencing homelessn'ess due to domestfe
situations without options for safe, sustainable housinjg

Area served: Statewide ..

izd this request,-individuals and/or families
.-violence may be left in unsafe or deadly
or supportive services. '

.Source of Funds: CFOA #14.267. FAIN #NH0113L1T001901

77lf l)tperUiit'U,9f Htollft and Hunien jStrvicti
I'l protndiiig opporlfillkt ri/i'/r'K .

Respectfully submitted.

■g j\y Lorj A. Shibineite
\  Commissioner

o totoiM wnmuiifilis end
9e<h!tv* hiolih end indtpfidtnce.
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Now Hampshiro Oepartmont of HeaUh and Human
Continuum of Caro, Rapid Re-HousIng Program

State of New Harr

Department of Health and Human Seivlces
Amendment 01 to the Continuum of Car

Services

pshire

t, Rapid Re-HousIng Program

This 1" Amer^dmenl to the Continuum of Care. Rapid Re-: lousing Program contract (hereinafter referred
to as 'Amendment 01*) is by and between (he Stale of hfev Hampshire. Department of Health and Humar^
Services (hereinafter referred to as the TState' or "Oepartmenr") and New Hampshire Coalition Against
DorT>estic and Sexual Violence, (hereinaffer referred to as the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with
a place of business at One Eagte Square. Suite 300. Concord. NH. 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") 9t proved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19,2019. (Hem #43). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services baspd upon the tdrmsand
conditions speclfred In the Contract and in consideration o r certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pui^uant to Form P-37. General Provisions Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.; Renewal, the (tpnlract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement'of the parties and approval from the G( vernor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, (he parties agree to extend the term of the eg ecment. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of the: a services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and Ihe mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set.forth herein, the parties hereto agrse to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Bloc)^ 1.7, Comple
■June 30,2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price L
$495,444.

3. Exhibit B, Methods and.CondHionsPreceder^t to P
Fundiiig. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., lorca

.  1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NKD113D1TOO1B00 (Stale Fiscal T
1.2.4.2. NH0113L1T001901 (State Fiscal Y

4. Exhibit 8,-Methods and.Conditions Precedent to F
Program Fundlrig. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2
•1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. Date of G8C approval through Jun 30. 2020; not to exceed.8246,064.

ion Date, to read;

milation, to read:

aynienl. Section-1. Rapid Re-Houslng Program
d:

ear 2020)

ear 2021)

ayment. Section 1. Rapid Rc-Housing
7.; (oread:

1.2.7.2. Date of G&C approval through Jun » 3,0. 2021; nol.to exceed $247^380.

• 5. Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to F aymenl. Section 1. Rapid Ra-Housing
Progranr} Funding, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.8.. to read:
1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

SFV 2020 SPY 2021

1.2.6.1. Rental Assistance: ■ $195i216 ■ ■  SI'94.532
1.2.8.2. Case Management: S39,048 $39,046

1.2.8.3. Trarisportalion: S2.S09 $2,509

1.2.8.4. Administrative Expenses: •  511.293 SI i.293

.1.2.8.5.. Total Program Amount: $248,064 $247,380

1.2.8.6. Vendor Match; $64,839 $64,668

N0W H&mpsnire Coalition Agalnsi
Domestic end Sexual Vldonco
SS-2020-6H$.04-PErtMA-2d-AOi

A/nendmcAt 01

Pege ^ ol 3
Contractor inHiala ^ .

O.U. -f. n
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NawHampfthlre Departmaht of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

All teons and condltloi^s of (he Contract-not incohsisteni wtth (his Amendmenl 01 remain in full force end
effect. This amendmenl shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands a's of the-daie written below,

State of New Hampshire
Depanment of Health and Human Services

Oai» \ NametCWr'tStiWa.. ^

New Hampshi/e Codlilion Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence.

CctfPuilfti '})il£cnit.

Now HsmpMre CealOon ̂OlAsi.
.OcmwdcandSeajSl Vtolonco- A/nertOtiBntOt
SS-203O-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A0t PtpeZolS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Continuum of Care, Rapid Re*Houstng Program

The preceding Amendmenl, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. ^ •

•OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/22/20 ■

Date Name:

Tiile: Ajsislani Attdrney General

^ I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendrrient was approved by the Governor and Executive Counol of
^ the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meetir^)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

•  • Title:

Ngw HsmpsNio Coalition Against
Domestic end Sexual Violence Amendment 01

SS-202O-6HSO4P£ftMA-2S-AOI 'PpgoSolS
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J<(Trcx A. Mcjrcn
Cemffllstioflf

CdrUitaf L Saaunkllo
Olrtfiof

STATE OF NtW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STA BIUTY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD.NH fl3Ml

803-271 -9474 I4004S2-334S EiL 9474

fas: 603-271.4230 TODAeceis: I-I00-73S-2964 Mnrw.dhhi.nh.gov

43 y

May 30. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into a sole source agreement wth New Hampshire Coalilion Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence. One Eagle Square, Suite 300. Concord. NH 03301 (vendor 55510 - BOOi). to provide
a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program serving New Hampshire individuals and households
who are fleeing domestic violence, through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to
exceed $248,064, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30.2020.100%
Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to adjust
budge! line items within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years through
the Budget Offlce if needed and justified.

05-95-42.423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUfWAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Conlractsfor Program Services TBO $248,064

Total $248,0.64

EXPLANATION

This request Is solo source because federal regulations require the Deparlment to specify each,
vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care '{CoC) Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant"award being Issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application
process and timing of grant terms do not align with stale or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant
Is based on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in CoC
Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the calendar year.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, many of which have
renewal dales dispersed throughout the calendar year, wiih vendors who are located throughout the state
to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.
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The purpose of this request is for the provision of a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH). Permanent Housing
(PH) Program targeted to serve a minimum of sixteen (16) households and twenty-nine (29) individuals
per grant year who are fleeing domestic violence (OV). and which provides uliiity and security deposits,
rent and utilities, combined with case management for up to two (2) years to help participants obtain, and
remain In, PH.

Using the 'Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendor will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing white providing
connections v/ith community and mainstream, victim-centered, supportive services to increase
participant's self-determined sense of.safety and control and their ability to live more independently.

The need for this newly-issued program, with a HUO grant award dale of April 24, 2019. Is
emphasized by the lack of affordable housing in New Hampshire, longer than normal shelter slays and.
returns to abus'ive partners, as well as the financial obstacles survivors face in securing PH and in
establishing independent lives. This new program is responsive to these demonstrated needs withm
New Hampshire's homeless. OV victim community.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves ihree main purposes;

•  .A Strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that Include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Slatislical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors. Including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
or outreach services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Informaiion System, unless they are required by law to
use an alternate means of data cotlectlon.

•  As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Department reserves the right to extend this
agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent.upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Rapid Re-Housing and
Domestic Violence Housing Supports, and associated supportive services for New Hampshire's
individuals and/or families who are experiencing homelessness due to domestic violence, may not be
available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demarid for services placed upon the
region's local cities arKl towns. It may also cause individuals and/or families to become homeless.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NH0113.
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Area served: Siaiewide

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

jffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

'/Tic Ocporl/.ienl ©///coll/i ond //i.»io»i Se/u»«i*Miwi«o ii COii/iui/i.Tici ond /b/iii/ici
in ftromdtng opporUtniiict for cifiu'U to ticntlA ond independence.
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Subjeci; Continuum of Cnre, Rwptd Rc-Hwume Proernm. SS-207Q»BHS-04-PERMa-28
FORM NUMBER P07 (version S/8/1S)

Noi'm: This B^ecmcni and oil oriLS anachmcnis shall become public upon tubmiuion to Oovcmor end
Executive Council for approval. Any informsiion that ii private, confidemifil or proprkiaiy must
be clearly idemined io the egency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Coniracior hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENERAt PROVISIONS

I.- IDENTIFICATION.
I.I Stale Agency.Name
NH Department of Health end Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3157

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic Sexual Violence
1.4 Contractor Address

Orte Eagle Square
Suite 300

Concord,NH 0330l

1.S Contractor Phone

Number

603-7I5-8799

1.6 Account Number

OS-95^2-4230lO-7927-

102-30073!

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2020

1.8 Price timitetion

$248,064

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for State Agertcy
Nathan 0. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-27i.963l

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name ortd Title ofConiractor Sigrustory
0^i\ M.Sc>\b\u)n

1.13 Adtnowlcdgemeni; State of

On C> ~ V"-i/ ̂  . before the undersigned officer, personall
proven to be the pvspii^whose name is signed in block l.ll, and ac
indical^ in Weiic'l'rlX'''

/appeared the person idemined irt block 1.12, or saiisfaciorily
tnowledged ihai s/he executed this document in the capacity

1.13:1 Siichnturt oftsoiiuy Public or Justice of the Peace

'  -tlSean'- ^
1.13.2 Norite and'fit),e of Notary or iusiice of the Peace

1.14 Agency SigfSl>re M

o.,jolu R
IJ 5 h^e and Title ̂ Staie Agency Signatory

Sa/lbn
1.16 Approval by ihc^.R Ocpartmeni'lTmdminrsl^tit^lOivision of Personnel (i/e'pplieablt) '

By: ^ 1 Director. On:

1.17 Appctf^Kby the Attorney Gcivr<P(Form, Substance and Execution) ftfoppiicabU)

■ \ A ^,LJt, civhf
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (i/opplicoblt)

By: On:

Page I of4 .
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2. EMPLOYMENTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Stole ofNewHompshirt. ociing
through the agency idemined in block I. I ("State engagu
conlracior idefttiHed in block 1.3 ("Contnictor'^toperfonn,,
and (he Coniracior ihali pcrrorm. the work or ule of goods, or
both, ideniificd and more particularly described in the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorpoaied herein by rcrcrtnce
("Services'1.

3. EFFECTIVE DaTE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwiihsiandingany provision of this Agrccmeni lo the
contrary, and subject to the approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of ihe State of New Hampshire, i f
applicable, this A^cement, and all obllcationi of the parties

^ hcrcundcr, shall become elTective on the dale the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become ciTeciive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTeciive Date").
3.2 If the Conirmctor commences the Services prior lo the
Efreciive.Datc, bI| Services performed by Ihe Coniracior prior
to the Efliective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
be^me efTectivc. the State shall have no liability.to the
Contractor, including without limitaiion, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Cofltracioi rnusl complete all Services by the Completion Dote
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ell obligations of the Slate hcreunder, including,
without limiiation, the continuance of payments hereunder. arc
coniingeni upon the availsbiliiy and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In Ihe event of a reduction orlcrminaiionof
appropriated funds, (he State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termirxstion. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the evwl funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price,-method of payment, and terms of
payment are tdcnlificd and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is Incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ail
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Coniroctor In the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
Shall have no liability to the Contractor other than (he contract
price.

•Page 2

5.1 The Suie reserves the right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or pcmtittcd by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (Ms Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the tout of all payments authorized, or aaualiy
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitaiion set forth in block
1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOVMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Corttractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, sute. county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the rcquirtmeni to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that pcrsoru with communicotioh
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicaie with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applieanis for
employmeni because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take.
alTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifthis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of (he
United Slates, the Conuactor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportuniiy"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or (he United States issue to
implement these rtgulaiions. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of Ihe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for (he purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations end orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel ncceasary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that al.l personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Servica, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during Ihe term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofrictai. who Is materially involved in (he
procurement, administration or performance of this

ofd
Coniracior Initials (mS

Datc53_5-
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AgrcenKnl. Thii provision shall survive terminationofihis
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer tpeciried in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the eveni
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agrccmcni,
the Controcting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

8. cvchrr of default/rcmcoics.

8.1 Anyone or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event ofDefauli");
l.t.l failure to perform the Services taiiiraciorily or on

schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any.report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.3 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defouli, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written not.ice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effcciivc two
(2) days after giving the Controclor noiiee of leimiruition;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made undci this
Agreement and ordcnng.ihat (he portion of (he contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such rtotice until such time as the State
determines (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against arty other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffen by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 (real the Agreement tu breached and pursue eny of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreeme.nt; the word "data" shall meon all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repons,
files, fonnulae, surveys, maps, Chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, leiteis, memoranda, papers, and documenu.
all %vticth<r finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received ftom
the State or purchased with flinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he Stele, and
shall be returned to (he State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.) Confideniiolityofdoia shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 •A or other existing law. Disclosure of daio
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In (he event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
CrTiccr, not later than ftftcen (1 i) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price tamed, to
end including (he date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be ideniicol to those of any Final Report
described in (he ouachcd EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

(he perrormince of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects on independent contractor, and Is rseilher an agent nor
an employee of the Stole. Neither the Controcior nor any of its
ofTiccrs, emptoyccs, agents or memberi shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any bcnefiu. workers* compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

II. assicnmcnt/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assigrt, or otherwise transfer eny
interest in this Agreement without the pri^ written notice ond
consent of (he State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor wiihoui the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from end ogalnsi any and all losses suffered by the
State, its ofllcers and employees, and any ond all claims,
liabilities or penahies assened against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, orlsing out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. NotMriihstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a woiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain ond
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:.
14.1.1 comprehensive gerKial liability Insurance ogainsl all
claims of bodily injury, death or property demage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and 32,000.000

. aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering ell
properry subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subpa/agraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in (he
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcptnment of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licertsed in the State of New
Hampshire.

/iV\^
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M.3 The Contficlor tKtIi furnish lo the Condtciing OfTiccr
idemined in block ) .9. or hit or her luccmor. i ceniricsic(t)
ofinsunnce for at) insurance required under this Agrtemeni.
Contraaof shall also furnish lo Ihe Cortireciing Officer
idemified in block 1.9. or his or her successor. ccrtiricfitc(s} of
insurance for all renewal(t) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirry (30) days prior to the expiration
dale ofe^ of the insurance policies. The cen>ricate(s) of
irtsurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached end are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurarrce Shall contain a clause requiring the insurer lo
provide the Contracting OfTiccr identified in block 1.9. or his
or her sxKcnsor. no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice ofcaneelUtion or modincition of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
13.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrca,
cenifics and warrants (hat the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirerrtents oTN.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A
("Wofktrj' Compensoilon").
15.3 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee lo secure
and maintain, payment of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to (his Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Conu^ing OfTicer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281'A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other cloim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Coniracior, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compcnulicn laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof aRer any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to (hat Event of
Ocfauti, or any subsequent Event of Oefauli. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver ofthe right of (he State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a parry hereto lo-ihe other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he
time of mailing by ccnified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post OfTice addressed lo (he parties at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto end only oRer approval of such
am'crvdraent, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumsunces pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance wjih the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit ofthe panics and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agr^ment
is the wording chosert by the ponies to express (heir mutual
intent, and no ruleofconstruciion shall be applied against or
in favor of any parry.

20. THIRD Parties. TIw panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADtNCS. The headings throughout the Agreement
ore for refcrexe purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpfeiailon, construction or meaning of the
provision) of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
fonh in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisionsof
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent Jurisdia ion to
be contrary to any stole or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between Ihe parties, and superxdes all prior
Agreemenu and understandings retoilng hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Rapid Re-Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Conlractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effectiv© date; submitted to;

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (6HS)
129 Pleasant Street •

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Conlractor agrees that, to the exlenl future legislative action by the New Hampshire Gerteral
Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
experiditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (C6C) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipienl of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for costs Incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1;4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the' Contractor as a
.subredpienl, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the cor\fidentialily procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptrcllef General of the United Stales, or any. of their authorized representatives, must
have, the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These fights of access are rtot limited to the required retention period, but last as lortg as the
records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state fmanciai and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/direttlves.

1.8 All programs shall be licensed to provide client-level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) or into a comparable database, as detailed in the
following publication from The National Networ1<- to End Domestic Violence (NNEOV):
http://Qlhrn.orQ/wordpress1/WP-content/uDl03ds/2016/08/ComP3rable-D3tabasB-for-DV-
NNEDV.Pdf
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1.9. Victim service providers, as referericed in ihe HMIS Proposed Rule, cannot input cJient-level
information into the ceftified local HMIS system under the standard privacy and security settings.
Victim service providers, instead,-must enter ctieni information into a separate Comparable
Database, arxj provide aggregate data to the CoC. Within the HMIS Proposed Rule, a Comparable
Database is an alternative system that must comply with HMIS reouirements-and which victim
service providers use to collect client-level data over time and to generate aggregate reports based
on the data.

1.10. Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information required for data entry,
accuracy of data entered, end lime required for data er\tiy. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

1.10.1 Secure and viciim-centered Comparable Databases must have the following characteristics:

1.10.2 The victim service provider controls svho can access and see client information;

1.10.3 Access to the database Is carefully controlled by the victim service provider;

1.10.4 Meets the standards for security, data quality, and privacy of the HMIS within the Continuum of
Care. The Comparable Database may use more stringent standards than the Continuum of
Care's HMIS;

1.10.5 Complies with ail HUO*required technical specthcations and data fields listed in HMIS;

1.10.6 Be programmed to collect data wilh the most up-to-date HMIS Data Standards:

1.10.7 Have the functionality necessary to de'duplicate client records sviihin each system In order to
provide an aggregate and unduplicated count of clients by project type;

1.10.8 Be able to generate all reports required by federal partners, for example, the HUD-CoC APR
ar>d the HUO-ESG CSV for the e-CART repofling tool; and

1.10.9 Data fields thai can be modified and customized by the victim service provider lo benefit clients.

1.11. The Contractor shall cooperate fully wilh and ansv^r all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.12. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate (he movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ES6) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance wilh CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 576.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a rapid re-housing program that <$ targeted to serve sixteen (1$)
households and twenty-nine .(29) people who are fleeir>g domestic violence (DV), and which
provides utility and security disposits. rent and utilities, along w/case management for up lo two
(2) years to help participants obtain dr>d remain in permanent housing (PH). and which includes
but is not limited to;

WfCAOSV RRM SFYIO» .
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2.2.1. Utilization of the 'Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are noi lmposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only termmate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participaht
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at e minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services Is required, wiih the ultimate goal being assistartce to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and mair\tain standard operatir^g procedures to- ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1.. Conlinuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness* status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 570.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assautl. or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented ir> the program participant's case

■  file. This rriay be written observation of the housing or service provider, a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social.worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, rnenlal health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or denial records; court records or law enforcement
records; or wrritten certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a Ihird^party. such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental heallh provider, or other professional from whom'the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of (he
vk5lencc or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.
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2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who re^es housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income;

2.3.1.4.1'. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; aixl

2 3 14 2 ' Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the'
program participant and income received before the dale of the evaluation;

2 3 1 4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, o written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are onobtainaWe. the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of Income that-the
program participant Is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2 3,1.5. Program Paflldoant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, Ihe Contractor must keep records (or each program
participant that document:

2 3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain In the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided In 24 CFR
578.37(a)(l)(ii)(F):and

2 3 1 5 2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance reguirement In 24
CFR 578.91.

2 3 1,6. Hoifsino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including Inspection reports.

2;3.i.7, Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent, on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed et least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oroanizalional connict-of-inlerest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board connict-of-interesl requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(b).

" 2.4.3. The Other Conflicts reouirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2 5 The Contractor shall develop, implement and reta.ln a copy of the personal conflict-of-interesl policy
that complies with Ihe requirements In 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibilions.

2 6 The Ccntraclor shall cbmply and retain documentation of compliance with:
lms
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2.6.1. The Homeless Panidpation reduiremenis In accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements iri accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Afftrmalivclv Furthering Fair HousinQ bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD. ■

2.6.6. The Contractor must retairi copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
comoiiancc with the Procurement Reouirements in 24 CFR 65.36 and 24 CFR part 84,

2.7. ConfidentiaKtv. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and implement writien procedures to
ensure; •

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying Information of any individual or family who'applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. • The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and tocal lavrs regarding privacy and obligations of confideriliality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying., or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for the greater of five (5) years foliovring the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final
payment by the Contractor or the period specified below.

2.8.1. Documentation of each program participant's qualification as a family or individual at risk of
homelessr>ess or as a homeless family or individual and other program participant records must
be retained for five (5) years after the expenditure of all funds from the grant under which the
program participant was served; and

2.6.2. Where Continuum of Care funds are used for the acquisition, new construction, or rehabilitation
of a project site, records must be retained until fifteen (15) years after the date that the project
site is first occupied, or used, by program participants.

2.6.3. Additionally. Individual survivor data must be routinely destroyed as soon as the program no
longer needs It to provide client services or to satisfy grant/legal requirements. Victim service
providers may suppress aggregate data on specific client characteristics if the characteristics
would be personally iderltifying. Finally. Ihe program's contract with the database vendor should
Include binding agreements to ensure security of and program control over client data, as
detailed in the pdf publication from The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV)
listed in Exhibit A section 1.9.

3. Vfooram ReoortlnQ Requirements
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3.1. The Contractor shall submit (he following reports;

3.1.1, Annual Performance Report fAPRV. Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS thai summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in padicuiaf how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the retevani fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability. (NOFA). The APR shall be In the form required or specified by the Slate, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested bv the Stale In compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. Including training In data security and confidenliatity. according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need lo attend such meetings five (5)
working days in.advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor ̂ all adhere lo all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application, federal fiscal year 201B. #SF-424, dated 9/10/2018; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall .abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to. those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to ait performance measures as detailed In the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Adminlstralor of BHS. or designee. may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement. '

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a rapid re-housIng program as outlined In Section 2.2. Exhibit A and
other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Survivors connecting with supportive services and community resources lo meet basic
needs for housing, food, mental health' and medical care; and Increased safety through

■  planning and trauma-informed resource provision. Staff empower victims to Increase safety
and regain control and independence, offering connections to assistance applying for
Victim's Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court advocacy and referrals
to free legal services. Households with children will be connected to education resources,
school staff, and chikfcare. based on need. -

6.3. The Contractor shat) provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
■ Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.
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fytETHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Rapid Re-Houslng Program Funding

1.1.. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and In considcfalion of the satisfactory
compJetiOn of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.8. Price Limitation and for the lime period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Oomestic Assistance (CFOA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDAP: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0113blT00l80O
1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Titte: Continuum of Care, Rapid f^e-Housihg
1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. Date of G&C approval through June 30. 2020; not to exceed $248,064

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;'

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $195,216

1.2.8.2. Cese Management: $39,046

1.2.8.3. Transportation: $2,509

1.2.6.4. Administrative Expenses: ' $11,293

1.2.8.5. Total program amount: $248,064

1:2.8.6. Vendor Match (25%) $64,839

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide, the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service' in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Reporl: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR pari 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Granl funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specifted in 2 CFR pad 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requircn>ents of 2 CFR par! 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited rinandal report to the Oepartmeni utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States In *S(ar^ards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions.' within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Pfolect Costa: Payment Schedule. Review by the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreemcnl, the term 'Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by Ihe Conlraclor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by Ihe Stale to be eligible and aCowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable »st standards set forth in 2 CFR pan 200 as re^ed from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 576.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components; permanent
housing; transitional housing; suppodrve services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to •
the restrictions on comtjining funds for certain eligibte activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 576.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements must be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all,grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subparl D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source aruJ use of coniributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the granl and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counled;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the exteni feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to sup^ri-lhe allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The Stale agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
experKJitures incurred in the fulfillmeni of Ihis Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only t)e reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Comparable Database Reouirentents and Exoense Parameters:

3.4.3.1. Victim service providers that are subrecipienls of funds requiring participation in
the HMlS, but are prohibited from entering data in the HMIS, ̂ st use a
comparable database to enter client information. A comparable database is e
database that can be used to collect ciient-ievet data over lime end generate
undupltcaied aggregated reports based on the client Information entered. The
reports generated by a comparable database must be accurate and provide the
same information as the reports generated by the HMIS.

3.4.3.2. A comparable database must be a retational database that meets all HMIS data
standards end meets minimum HMIS privacy/security requirements. It also must
t>e able to produce the '.csv* files required by HUD. The subrecipient agency
must document that the alternative system meets all HUD system r^uircments
per httDs://www.hudexchanQ&.info/or^rams/hmis/hmis-reQuirements/

3.4.3.3. BHS will not approved expenses beyond the first quarter of the contract unless
substantial, measurable progress has been made in impiemeriiation and staff
training to fully utilize comparable database. Progress measurements may
Include, but ar.e not limited to:

3.4.3.3.1. A copy of executed contract with Database provider; and

3.4.3.3.2. An established training schedule and Implementation schedule of
comparable database.

3.4.3.4. The contractor will be responsible to ensure they are meeting all of the HMIS
standards for training, which are included in the NH-HMIS Policies and
Procedures Manual for the comparable database, located at: httor/fnh-
hm»8.orQ/9i!es/default/fites/refefence/NH-HMlS-PnP-112016.odf

3.4.3.5. If the comparable database is not futty in place by month nine (09) of the contract,
the subrecipient agency shall pay Ihe full amount of any HUD grant funds
expended by the subrecipient agency.

3.4.4. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit B, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.5. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Departmenl of Housing and Urban Development Title. XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergertcy Assistance and Rapid Transiticn to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Lew 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.6. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.6.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, Including the final
reimbursement request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (lOlh)
day of each month, for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from
the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a
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payment request form and any other documentation required, as designated by
the Stalo."vvt>ich shall be completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.6.2.' In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed In Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to;

housinQsuoDortsinvoicesfiWhhs.nh.oov

3.4.6.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Deparlmenl
programs and services, end shall provide such records and any additional
financial ir>fomiation if requested by the Stale to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any lime during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited FinarKlal Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of-actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the Slate disallows costs for %vhich payment has not.yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement arc
subject to recapture. .

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or Slate law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed In accordance
with the terms and condillons of this Agreement.

4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Genera! Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusltr^
amounts between budget tine items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within

■  the price limitation, end to adjusting encumbrances Ijetsveen State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

6. Expense Ellglbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipl/availabii'ity of federal funds, the Conlrador shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified In this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. ^pcratina Expenses:

5.2.1.. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and Insurance (including property and car):
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5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housir>g
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost};

5.2.V4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant furtds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; end

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs indude;

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3.' Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
(he housing are induded in (he lease.

5.3. SuODortive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all MUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
570.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible
and include tnjck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of (he
program participanl(s) are eligible costs;

5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing
child-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness,
including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated
developmental activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs Is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

HKCaDSVRRM SFY2020 ExMtie
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5.3.2.0. Legal sen/ices. Eligible cdsts are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
personfs) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in rhatters thai interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, .and homeiessness are eligible.
These services must be r>ecessary to assist the program partidpant to function
IndependenUy in the community. Component IKe skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, confticl
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed.professionals. Component
services ere crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psycholropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications: end combinations of therapeutic
epproaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engageipersons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and intervention, as well as IdenUfying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake
and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and Individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible, inpaiient detodfication end other inpailent drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transponation Services are described in 24CFR 576(e) (15);

'5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of essistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17, Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) -
(16) of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subredpient,
eligible costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care
program funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional (icensure or
certifications needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

S.3.2.1Q. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.
ljiy\C
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5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or v^o is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal, State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CPR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4;3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent:

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor. In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities., facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay.
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention -Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the stAJCture and operation of the housing or services.

5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tcnaril-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described by HUD In 24 CFR
578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenani-based rental assistance is rental essistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When
rtecessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and
subrecipicnts may require program participants to live in a specific area for their
entire period of participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a
specific area for the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium
term rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program
component must be tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contrads betv^reen the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.
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5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance it they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
parildpants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,-
wtiich is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable ppon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include;

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying cut activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

•5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management."coordinalioo. monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following;

5.5.1.3. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage In program adminlstrdiion.

5.5.1.3.1., In charging costs to this category, the conlractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allccable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve program
administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary, wages;
and related costs of each person vrfiose job Includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:

5.5.1.3.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.3.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with progrem
reguirements:

5.5.1.3.1.3. Developing Interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipienis arid contractors to carry out program adivities;

5.5.1.3.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress dnd compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.3.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.3.1.6. Coordinating the BOlution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.3.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the
program submission to HUO;
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5.5.1.3.1.6. Evaluaiing program results against stated ot^ectives;

5.5.1.3.1.9. ■ Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities
with regard to the program include such assignments as those
described in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above,
Exhibit B.

5.5.1.3.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for official business In cairying out the
program;

5.5.1.3.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services.

. accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.3.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of
the program, including such goods and services as rental or
purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental ar>d maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.3.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum,of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainirtgs; and

5.5.1.3.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental
review responsibilities under 24 CER 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organizationfs). or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the stajcture. unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
In the area for comparable space, in addltior), (he rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individua.l units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged
for comparable units, taking into account .the location, size. type, quality,
amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not
exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may
not exceed HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities, if the structure
Is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.
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5.6.1.4; Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use gran!
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord
in addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases.'Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 576.77fd}.

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and reni from
program participants must be calculated as provided In 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges ar)d rent collected from program
participants are program Income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison
to rents charged in (he area for simitar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUO-delermined fair
marVet rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6. t. 12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannotTease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HtJD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parlting. pool charges, etc. are e( the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to tliis Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timeshecls.

6. Contractor Financial Management System.

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedin-es
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for. grant funds and any r^uircd
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor. '

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies >vilh 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPFCIAL PRQVISIQHS

Contractors Obligatloos: The Conlractor covenants and agrees ihat all funds received by the Contraclor
under the Contract shell be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligibfe
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Conlractor hereby covenants end
ogrees as follows':

1. Compliance with Federal end State Laws: if (he Conlractor is permitted to determine (he eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shell be made in accordance with oppiicabie federal end
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, poiicies and procedures.

2. Time arid Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: Iri oOdition to the dclcrminatJon forms required by the Department, the Conlractor
shall maintain a data Tile on each recipienl of services hereunder. which file shall include all
informalion necessary to support an eligibility delerminaiion and such other infomnation as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with an forms' and documentation
regarding ol'igibiOty determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor ̂ 0^dersta^ds that alt applicants for services hereunder; as well as
Individuals declared ineligibte have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Coitlractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shati be permitted to rdl out
en application form end that each applicant or re-eppiicant shaQ be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations'.

5. Gratuities or Klc'kbaclts: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
malce a payment, gratuity or offer of emptoymeni on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Slate in order to influence the performance of (ho ̂ ope of Woh( detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. Tha State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sut>-8greement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind svcre offered or received by
any orTidals, officers, employees or egeois of the Conlractor or SutyContractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwilhsiartding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contraclor for costs Incurred lor
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to me Effective Date of the Contract
end no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the individual applies (or services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to e determination that the individual is eligible for such services..

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwilhslanding ariything to the contrary contained in the Contract.nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Departrnem to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds the rete charged by (he Conlractor to ineligible Individuals or other third parly
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the OepanmerM shad determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other then such costs, or has rweived payment
In excess of such costs or ir> excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third parly fundart. the Department may elect to;

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event now rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Conlractor the amount of any prior rcimbureementln.

excess of costs:
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7.3. Demand repaymeru of the excess payment by (he Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shaO cortslHute an Event of Default hereurwJer. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the etigibility of Indivtdudts for services, the Corxtrador agrees (o
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Coniraclof tor services
provided to any individual who is fourtd by the Department to be ineligible for such servlcesat
any lime during the period of retention of reconjs established herein.

RECORDS; f^NTENANCE. RETEMTION. AUDIT, DiSClOSURE AND CONFlOeNTtALlTY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In eddilion to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to mainioin the foDowing records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other dale evidencing and reflecting all costs
and otiier expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or coOccted by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records'lo be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which suffjcier\liy and
properly reflect an such costs end expenses, and wMch are acceptable to the Department, end
to Include, without Qmltaiion. all ledgors. books, records, and original ovidence of costs such as
purchase reQuisilions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, irwentories, valuations of
irwkind contributions, labor time cards. pa^^oDs. and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. Statisticat Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each redptent of
servfces during the Contract Period, which records shall include ail records of applicationend
eligibitity (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regardirtg the provision of services ar^d all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medicat records on each patient/redpienl of services.

9. Aud it: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the cfpso of the
agency fiscal year. K Is recommended thai the report be prepared in eccordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of Stales, local Governments, end Non
Profit Organlzaiions* end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Covommenial OrganizaUons,
Programs. Activities and Functiorts. issued by the US General Accounting Offico (GAO standards) as
they pertain to ftnandai compliance audits.

9.1. Audit end Review; During (he term of (hisContrscI and (he period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Slates Oepartmeni of Health and Human Senrlces. and any of their
designated representatives Shan have access to all reports end records maintained pursuanito
the Conlract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Controctor that the Contractor shall be held (iablo for ony state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Oepartment, ell payments made under (he
Contract to which exception has been latien or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records; All information, reports, and records maintair^ed hereunder-or collected
In connection with the performance of the serves and ihe Contract shall be confider^lial end shailr^ol
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regardir>g the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected lo.the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information cof>ccmlng a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of (he Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wrttten consent of the recipient, his
Bltomey or guardian.

oanvii
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NoMlhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants end conditions conteined in
the Paragraph shall survive the lemiinallon of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Siatistjcal: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
tl.1. fnterim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed descriplioncf

ell costs and norvailovrable expenses incurred by the Contractor to (he date of (he report end
containing such other infomalioh as shall be deemed satisfactory by (he Department to
justify the rote of payment herounder. Such Flnencloi Reports shall t>c submitted on the form
designated by the Oepertment or deemed saiisfactcry by the Oeparlmeni.

11.2. Final Report; A fmoi report shall ba submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of (he term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form sotisfectory to the Oepertment'end shall
contain a summery statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Informatton required by the Oepartmenl

12. Completion of Sorvlcca: Disallowance of Cosls: Upon the purchase by the Oepartmenl of the
ma»mum number of units provided for in the Conlrect and upon paymeni of the price Imitation
hereuoder, the Contract ar>d alt the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such'obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed afler.tho end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Conlrect) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report (he Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credlls: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other malenals prepared
during or resulting from the performance of tf>e services of the Contract shall Include (hefr^lowing
statement:

13.1. Tfte preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with tfieStalo
of New Hampshire. Departmeni of Healih and Human Services, with funds provided in pan
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other furtding sorurces as were available or
required, e.g.. (he Urdted States Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All matenais (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased u/>der the contract shaD have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will relain copyrighJ ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines. -
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the conlrect without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. OperaUon of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation ol any faciElies
for providing senrices. the Conlractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stele, county and municipal authorities and with any direction ol any Pubfx Officer or officers
pursuant to laws wt^ shall Impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services al such fadlily. If any'govemmenial license or
perrnit shall be raqiired for tho operation of the said facility or the performance of the said senrices.
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will ol all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in conf>eclion with the foregoing requirements, the
Conlractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contracl the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regiflalions. end requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire proieclion ogeiKy, and shall t>e In conformartce with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employmont Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conlractor will provide ari Equal Emptoymenl
Opportunrty Plan (EEOP) lo Ihe Off»co for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of SSOO.OOO or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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mofe employeoa, it will maintftn a cu/renl EEOP on file end sutynit an EEOP Cartiftcation Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on nte. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the erhount of the award, the recipient will provide an

' EEOP Cerlircation Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or mainiain an EEOP. Norv
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, end medical end educationat Institutions ere exempt from (he
EEOP requirement. tHh are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certirtcatlon Forms are available at: http://www.o]p.usdo|/aboul/ocr/pdfs/ceit.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP); As ciartfied by Executive Order 13166, improving Accass lb
Services-for persons with Limited English Proficiency, erxl resulting agency guidance, nationaiodgin
discrimination Includes discrtminotion on the basis ol limited English proficiency fLEP). To erisuro
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 and Title VI of the Chrll

'  Rights Act of 1964. Contractor must taKa reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons nave
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to an contracts that exceed iho Sim^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined in46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Emplovee whistleblower Rcmts and requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistle eiowEP RCMTs (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees wording on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Coniractoi employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628'Qf the National Defense Auihorizalion Act for Fiscal Year 201.3 (Pub. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.908.

(b) Tf>a Contractor shall inform Us employees in writing, in the predominant language of the worltforca.
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of (he Federal Acquisilion Regutalion.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simgifted acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to pariorm certain healih care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accour^abirrty for the functionfs). Prior to
subconira.cting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform (he delegated
function(s). TNs is accomplished through a written agreement thai specifies aclivilies and reporting
responsibilllies of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanction's if
the subcontractor's performanco is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Conlreclor and (he Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
wilh.those conditions.

When (he Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Ccntraclor shall do the following:

18.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's obility to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that spedfies activities andreporting
' responsibilities end how sanctions/revocairon will be managed if (he subcontractor's
performanca is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis
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19!4. Provide 10 OHMS an annual schedule Identifying aU subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subconir8ctor'& performance wilt be reviewed

19.S. DHHS Shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Ooflnltions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean (hose direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowabie end reimbureable in accordance with cost end accounting principles established
In accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department ol Heafth and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable. Shall mean the document submiRed by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with iha terms and conditions of (he
Contract and seRing forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided •
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall
mean that period of time or thai specified ectivliy deiermirted.by the Department end specified
In Exhibit 8 of the Contratct.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regutalions, rules, orders, 8r>d
policies, etc. ere referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
ell such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under (his
Contract win not supplani any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT UANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4 Conditional Nature of Aofecment. is replaced as foUows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OP AGREEMENT.

Notvvllhstanding any provision of this Aproemont to the contrary. aD cb&gatiorxs of the Stata
hereunder. includirtg without limitalion. the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreemoni are contingent upon continued appropriation or avallablUty of funds,
including ony subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal leglstalive or executive action that reduces, etimlnales. or ot/wrwisa
modifies the appropriation or availabSity of funding for this Agreement and (he Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. In whole or in part. In no event shaD (he
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of eppropriaied or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, lerminatlon or modification of appropriated or available funds, (he
State shall have the right to vMihhoio payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement'
immediately upon giving (he Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. Tha Siala shall not be required to.transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) idenlified In blocK 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in (he event-funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising lis
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 in the event of earty (ermir\ation. the Contractor shall, wilhin i5 days of notice of eaily
termination, develop end submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under (he
Agreement. Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 Tfte Contractor shall My cooperate wilh the Stale 8r>d shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any Information or

. data requested by Ihe Stale relaied to (he lenmination of (he Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisioris of the Transition Plan to the Stale
as requested.

10.4 In the event lhal services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receMi^
services under Ihe Agraamanl are transitjoned to having services deiiverod by another
entity Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide 8 process for

'  uninterrupted delivery of services In Ihe Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other affected individuals
about (he transition. The Contractor shall Include (he proposed communications in ils
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described ebove.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon salisfdclory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties end approval of the Governor and Execulive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identifled lr> Section V3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Vl/orlcplace Act of 1966 (Pub. L 100>690. Title V, Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contraaor's representalive. as Identified in Sections
1.11 er>d 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This cerlificalion.is required by the regutaiions imptementing Sections Si St-5160 of (he Drug-Free
Worttplace Act of 1966 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subliiie 0; 41 U.S.C. 70i el $eq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691), and require certilicalion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees ar>d sub
contractors). prior to award, (hat they will maintain a dnjg-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certiftcates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of (he certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Departmeni of Health and Kumen Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It wQI or will contirxre to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing.8 statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplece and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Eslablishlng en ongoing drug-free awarertess program lo inform employees about.
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in (he workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a dru^free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabitilebon, and employee 8s$lslor\ce programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties t)iat may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in (he workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee (o be engaged in the performance of the grant be

g'lven o copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in (he stalemeni required by paragraph (a) that, as a cortdilion of

employment urtder the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by Ihe terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify (he employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of 8 criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writirrg. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual-notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EmiUi 0 - Cenltleition rtgxrdlng Drug Fim Vendor MUais uws
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has designated a central p«nt for the receipt bf such notices. Notice shall include the
identificetion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagmph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Toking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and induding

terminotion, consistent with the requirements of the Rehatylllalion Ad of 1973. as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. MoUng e good fallh effort to continue to maintain a drug-tree workplace through
implemenlotion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4. l.S. end 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the sltc(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific granl

Ptace of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Nome.Tipt CooiVt
ASlXuoS. MwVtAOL

U> . 4'
Data Name:U^"^A.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
SecUon 319 of Pubic Uw 101-121. Govcmmeni wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Ubbyi^. end
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have.lhe Contractor's rcprcscniaiive. as Identified in Sections 1.11
er>d 1.12 of the Ger>eral Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUHAAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DERARTMEfNT OP AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enfofcemeni Program under Tiua lv-0
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•CommunJIy Services Block Grant under TiUe VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of Ns or her knowledge and belief, that:

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behall of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or anempting to influence an officer or employee of eny agency, a Member
of Congress, en officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member ol Congress in
connection vvilh the awarding of any Federal contract, ccntinualion. renewel. amendment, or
modificauon of any Federal conuact, grant, loan, or coopcraUve agrecmeni (and by speofic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2  If any funds other lhan Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be pakJ to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conimct. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific meniion sub-grantee or sub
contractor) the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with H$ Instructions, attached end identified as Standard Exhibli E-l.)

3  The undersigned shall rcguirc that the language of this certificaUon be included in the award
document for sub-awards al all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, end conuacts under gmnis.
loans, and cooperative agreements) end that ell sub-recipients shall certify end discJose accordingly.

This certificalion Is o material representalion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this l/arisaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this ccitlficBlion is a prerequisite for making or entenng into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 3t. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
certificalion shall be subject to a civii perialty ol not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for-
each such failure.

Vendor N3me:tiW

■  Name:U^Tt Sc/oWflVf
Title: g^<cv>tivC Svtc!®^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

ANO OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Idenlifted In Section l .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presidenl. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Perl 76 regarding Debarment,
Sutpcosion. and Other ResponslblGty Matters, and further agrees lo have the Contractor's
re^eseniative, asidenlirted in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute thefoQowIng
Cenirication;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary partJciponi is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inablrty of e person to provide the certiflcaiioo required below wCI not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered tiBnsaction. if necessary, the prospective participant shall submil en

• explanation of why it cannot provide the certiTicalion. The certification or explanation witibe
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether lo enter Into this transaction. ■ Hovrever. failure of Ihe prospective primary
parllcipani to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon wtuch reliance was'placed
v^en OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If il is later determined that the prospective
primary partidparti knowirtgly rendered an erroneous cenirication. in addition to other remedies
available to the Fe.deral Government. OHHS may terminate tltis transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary portidpam shall provide immediate wrlnen r>o(ice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary paniclpsni learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms-'covered transaction.* 'debaned.* 'suspended.* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'partidpanl,' 'person,* 'primary covered transaction.* 'prindpal.* 'proposal.' end
'vofunterlly exduded.' as used in this dause, have (he meanings set out in the Definitions end
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Pah 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primarypartldpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be eritered into, it shall not knowingly enter inio any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, dedared ineligible, or voluntaiily exduded
from pahidpation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary pahidpani fuhher agrees by submittir^g this proposal that il v^ll indude the
dause titled 'Cehification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, tneligibility and Vduniary Exduslon •
Lower Tier Covered Trensactlons,* provided by OHHS. without modification, in eD lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidtetionx for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A pahidpant In a covered t/ensection may rely upon a certification of a prospective pahidpani in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the cehification is erroneous. A pahicipant may
dedde the method and frequency by which It determines the eiigibifily of its prindpals. Each
pahicipant may, but Is not requir^ lo. check the Nonprocurement List (of exduded pahies).-

9. Nothing contained in the foregotng.shail be construed lo require establishment of e system of records
In order to render In good faith (he cehification required by this dause. The knovriedge and

EiNbli F - Cetjl^tlOA Reytrrflng OetMrmerX. Susperulon Vcneor iNQxb
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inrormation of a participant is not tequired-(o exceed that whicN Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

to. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a partidpani in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily.excluded from partidpation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemmem. DHHS may terminate (his transaction
for cause or defaull

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospectrvc primary participant certifies to the best of its krvow4edpe and beiiaf, that it end its
principals:
11.1. ore not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared IneUgibie, or'

votunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depanment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Stale or local)
transaction or a contraci under a pubEc transaction; violation of Federal O' Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embeulement. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3; are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmenlal enlily
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any o1 the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not v^thin a three-year period preceding this applicaiionfproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, &ate or local) terminsled for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certifKatiori, such prospective participant shall attach an exf^anation to this proposal (conirecl).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, es

defined in 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
'  13.1. are not presently debaned, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. dedered ineligible. or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. v^ere the prospective lower tier panicipanl Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall altach en explanalion to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include (Ns clause entitled 'Certificdlion Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* wiihoul modificalion In all lower tier covered
transactions end In 80 solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor NameiMW CKtjLvV\

(p. UV<xLA
Date NameU^^ U.
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CERTIFtCATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TQ
PEOERAL NONDISCRtMIMATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS ANO

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signalure of the Contractor's
representeirve as Wentiftedln Sectiora ̂  and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceitlfication:

Vendor wW comply, and wiD require any sobgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any eppliceble
federal nondiscrlmlnalion requirements, which may indude:

♦ the Omrtibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1960 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) vmich prohibits .
reclptenis of federal funding under this statute from dtscrimlnallng. either In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or bencnis. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
.requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Cpportunliy Plan;

• • the Juvenile Jusllco Delinquency Prevention Act of 2O02 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligaUons of the Safe Streets Act. Reclptenis of federal funding under this
statute ere prohibited from discriminating, either in employmeni prectices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race. cdor. religion, naitenel origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200bd. which prohibits redpienls of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or natx^ai origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 704). which prohibils reciptenls of Federal financial
assistance from discrimlnaiing on the basis of disabilily. in regard to cmptoymeni and the delivery of
services or bcncfiis. in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. SccUons 12131-34). which prohibits
discflrnlnation and ensures equal opportuniiy for persons with disaWiilles in Gmploymenl, Stole and local
govemmenl services, public accommodations, commercial facUilies. and iransportoiion;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 u!s.C. Sections i68l. 1683. 1685-86). which prohibits
discftmlnation on the .basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

. the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). ̂ Ich prohibits discriminalion on the
basis of age in programs or octhriltes receiving Federal financial asslslance. U does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R, pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Relations - OJJDP Gram Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Oepanmenl of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for failh-based and community
organteations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizaliona:

- 28 C F R pt 38 (U S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Oroanizatlons); and'Whistteblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Acl(NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects cmptoyces against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and conirecls.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grourtds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemmenl wide suspension or
debarmenl.
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In the eveni a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State adrntnistratrve agency makes a finding of
discrimtnation efter a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wiO'forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights. (6
the appfcabie contracting agency or division within the Oepartment of Health and Human Services, and
to the beparlmen) of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identilted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by slgnalure of the Contractor's
representative es Idenliried In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foOowIng
cenincation:

1. 6y signing and submitting Ihis proposal (controct) the Vendor egrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name-l^tV CoOAiVin
KSex\)Qi. \J\C®rvOl

Date Namet^. ^

Vendor maisij
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CERTIFICATION RgGAROINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227, Pan C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as Ihe Pro-Children Ad of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permined in ony portion of eny indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity arxJ used roulir>ely or regularly for the provision of Health, day care, education,
orlibrery services to children under the age .of 16. If the services are funded byFederei programs'either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant,, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does nol apply to children's services provided in private residences, focililies funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald furtds. ond portions of fodlities used for inpalient drug or alcohol ireetmenL Failure
to comply with tha provlstoni of the law may rosutt In the imposition of a civil monelary penally of up to
$1000 per day ond/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified In Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representotive as Identified In Section 1.11 and t .l2of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlficalion:

1. By signing artd submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply with
eil applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227. Part C. known os (he Pro-Children Act of 1094.

vendor NameiViV^

(<,. (9
Dale Neme;Lvy\ VA.

Title:
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTYACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portdbiiity end Accountability Act, Public Law 104'191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Ideniifiabte Health Information, 45
CPR Parts 160 and 164 appticabte to business associates. As deftned herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity*
shall mean the Stpte of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services.

(1 Oeflnltlons.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
ln45CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AoareQalion' shall have the same meaning as Ihe term 'data aggregation* In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'heallh care operations*
In 45 CFR Sectlon 154.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Heallh
Act. TlileXIII. Subtitle 0. Pad 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104*191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
InfonmaUon. 45 CFR Pads 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Pads 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Depadment of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protecled health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

j/2014 ErfiWll Vendor IftlltiU ^
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I. 'Reouifi&d bv Law' shall have the sanfte meaning as the term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secrelafv* shall mean the Secrelary of the Department of Heallh and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pert 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' rneans protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard (hat renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization thai is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Defmitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and (he
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Inforrnaiion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. - Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management end administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by taw. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted-under the Agreemeni to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conftdentially and
used or further disdosed only as required by law or for Ihe purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notincation
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to (he extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of Ihe Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disdosure on the basis thai it is required by law, without first notifying '
Covered Enliiy so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, (he Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate thai Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by addiliorval restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bourid by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Bualneas Asaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall noiify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health inforrnation and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity. ^

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include. t>u1 noi be
linfuted to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected heaflh information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessrneni within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notiricatlon Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contrad provisions (P*37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Infonmation.

f. Wthin five (S) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Oeslgnated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or es directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section16<.524.

h. Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity (or an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and informalion related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accountihg of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with'45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from (he Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to .forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to (he.indlviduats request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within (en (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received frorn. or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retairi any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of (he
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to (hose
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQfltions of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitdlion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitaiion may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shad promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered

.Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set foith herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity n^ay either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity.

• determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
.  violation to the Secretary.

(6) . Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulaton/References." All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as (hose terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lin^e to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to (eke such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity..

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seorfloation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or (he applicaUon thereof to any
person(s) or orcumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabte.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit i regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destnjclion of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense end indemnification-provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of (he
standard terms end conditions tP'37). shall survive tho tormlnalton of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department ofHeallh and Human Services ^ jtSffijoSL ViiUACA
Name of the Vendoj

Signature of A^uthoriz^Ke'present&trvel..jjSigndture of AutHbrized Representati^

Name of Authorized Representative. Name of Authorized Representative.

Th^State

Signature of A^uthoriz^Kepresen

me of Authorized Representative. Name of Authorized Repi

9n/ffhri D'fJ'fS ttxcdir-
Title of Authorized R

(9~f-\
esentative Title of Authorized Representative

b 4- 19
Dale Dale
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABlUTy AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Fe<lcreJ Fundrng AccounlabiBly end Trensparcncy Act (FFATA) requires prime owardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 end awarded on or after October 1 .'2010, to repod on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If (he
inilial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modlficstions result in a Iota! award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sutiject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
tn accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporling Subsward and ExecuUve Compensation Information), the-
Oepanmenl of Health and Human Servicas (OHHS) must report (he following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
\. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding egency
4. NAICS code for coruraas / CFOA program number for gronls
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of (he entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique ideniifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
to. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

tO.t. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal goverrvneni, and those
revenues ere greater than $25M ̂ nuaily and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wdih the provisions of
The Fedeial Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Port 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), and fuAher agrees
to have the Coniractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 or\d 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Verier agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Deportment
of Health and Human Services and lo comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accouniabilily end Transparency Act.

Vendor NamefttV COflJlAvn ^^TfVp^lVlO

Dale Name;UATN

cuooo'noro
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As ihe Vendor idenilfied In Section 1.3 of ihe General Provisions, f certify ihsl the responses to the
below listed queslions are tnje and accurate.

V The OUNS rwmtTcr for your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (l) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts:
toons, grants, eu^gronts. and/or cooperative agreements; arto (2) S3S.000.000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contreds. subcontracts, loans, grants, subgronts. end>or
cooperative agreements? -

NO YES

If the ariswer to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, pfease answer the foflowirig;

3. Does the public hove occess to informolion obout the compensation of the executives in your
business or organlzoiion through periodic reports filed under section i3(o) or 15(d) of the Securities.
Exchange Ad of 1634 (IS U.S.C.78m(e). 76c(d)) or section 6104 of the Inlemal Ftevenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organlzalion are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Nome:

Name:

Name:

Amount:'

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Arr>ount;

cuo««H07o
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Dermftions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any simitar term referring to'
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally. Idenliriabte
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected 'Health
Information.' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Securtty Incident* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Oepariment
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information* or 'Confidential Data' means ad confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance tenefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Oepariment of Health and •
Human Services (OHMS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Proledcd Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFi). Federal Tax Information (FTl). Sodal Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance wiih the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accduntabiiity Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the-unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characlerislics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, toss
or mispiacenient of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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OHMS Information Security Requirements

maU. all of vuhich may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open WrelBss Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Slate, to transmit) will be considered on open
network ar>d r>ol adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS dala.

8. 'Personal information' (or 'Pi*) means information which can be.used to distinguish
or trace an Individuars idenlily. such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 35S-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or wtien combined with olher personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date arkJ place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under HiPAAby the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or *PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amcndmenis
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Informalion* means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health tnformaiion
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE GOMTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Conlraclof must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except es reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy end Security Rule.

2. The Contractor, must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by taw. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disdosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrlcttons over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivative there from disdosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in (his Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of OHHS tor the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terrris of this
Contract.

II. -METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If ErwJ User is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between appiicdtions. the Contractor ahests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
applicabon's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmittir>9 DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End-User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. -

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mai) Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiri&d ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless nelworh. End User must employ a virtual private networt< (VPN) wt^n
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communicdtion. if End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Cpnfidentidi Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must t)e
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also Known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
stAJCture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conridential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

Ml. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with' the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This phys'icai location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
dala and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ere in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential ̂ formation for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anil-malware utilities. The environment.'as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intajslon-detection and firewall prelection.

6. The Contraclor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of .the. hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Oisposilion

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conndeniial information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain wrinen certrficalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no lor^er In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatioo, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-86, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitizatiori, National institute of Slar^ards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Cot^tractor will document and certify. In wriiing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide wrinen certification to the Department
upon request. The wntten certification will include alt details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will te jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2.' Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30). days of the termination, of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confcdcniial Data
by means of data erasure, also known as.secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, ̂ ocessed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contraclor will . maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecyde. .where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication, and. access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepaitment conndentiat' Information
where applicable.

. 4. The .Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities, ere in. place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department conndential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information..

6. If the Contractor will be subrcontracting any core functions of the engag^ent
supporting.the services for State of New Hampshire. the'Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements.that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. irKluding breach notification requirement's. -

I. The Contractor will work vrith the Department to sign and .comply with.elL applicable
Slate of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, ar^ computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systerhfs). Agreements will be
completed and slgi^ed by the Corrtractor ai^ any. applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business .Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor v^ll execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining.compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will wor1( with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, an'd vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the (Contractor engagement. The survey -will be completed
annually, or an atiemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the DepartmerU may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor, will not Store, krKiwingfy or unknowingly, any State-of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

II. Data Security Breach Liability. In (he event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of (he breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future txeach and minimize any damage or loss resutting from the'breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Iricluding but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone, call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with at) applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conndential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provlislons of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individualty identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agriees to establish arxJ maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conftdentiaiity of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The.Contractor will notify the Slate's Pftvacy Offjcer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a conrtdential information breach, computer
security incident; or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networl*.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conridenlial Data obtained under this
Contract lo only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to-protect Confidential. Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadverlent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails conlainir^g Confidential Information only if encrypted and beir»g
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by taw.

f. Confxfential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area-that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorUed persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Induding any
derivative files containing personalty Identifiable information, and In an cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their u^r credentials (user nanne and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance vnth this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations ur^til such lime the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
- . Security Incidenls and Breaches immediately, at Ihe email addresses provided in

Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Inciidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Nolificalron
procedures and in. accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wiil:
1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine rf personally identrfiable information is involved in Incidents;

3.- Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit Of P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidenls
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Oetemiine whether Breach notrficaiton is required. ar>d. if so. tdentrfy appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidenis and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 35^C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrivacyCfficert^hhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInform8tionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

•1//S
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